COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Between

BOMBARDIER TRANSPORTATION (HOLDINGS) USA, INC.

And

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS AFL-CIO, LOCAL UNION 589

Covering

Supervisors Employed at John F. Kennedy International Airport, Jamaica, NY

> August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AGREEMENT	<i>.</i> 1
ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE AND INTENT	
ARTICLE 2 – DEFINITIONS	
ARTICLE 3 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	
ARTICLE 4 – COOPERATION AND NON-DISCRIMINATION	5
ARTICLE 5 – WORK WEEK, WORKDAY, OVERTIME & SCHEDULING	6
ARTICLE 6 – SAFETY AND HEALTH	7
ARTICLE 7 – UNIFORMS/ TOOLS/ SIDA BADGE	9
ARTICLE 8 – REPORTING FOR WORK	9
ARTICLE 9 – PAID TIME OFF	10
ARTICLE 10 – SENIORITY	11
ARTICLE 11 – NO STRIKES – NO LOCKOUTS	14
ARTICLE 12 – JURY DUTY/ BEREAVEMENT/ MILITARY LEAVE	14
ARTICLE 13 – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION	15
ARTICLE 14 – DISCHARGE AND DISCIPLINE	18
ARTICLE 15 – RATES OF PAY	19
ARTICLE 16 – BENEFIT PLANS	20
ARTICLE 17 – UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE	21
ARTICLE 18 – TRAINING	22
ARTICLE 19 – JOINT SUPERVISOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	22
ARTICLE 20 – UNION VISITATION/ COMMUNICATION	23
ARTICLE 21 – UNION CONSULTATION	23
ARTICLE 22 – SEPARABILITY	24
ARTICLE 23 – SOLE AND COMPLETE AGREEMENT	24

ARTICLE 24 – UNION SHOP	24
ARTICLE 25 – NEW HIRES	26
ARTICLE 26 – DURATION AND TERMINATION	26
ARTICLE 27 – SHOP STEWARD	27
APPENDIX A	29
Job Description – Customer Service Supervisor	
Job Description – Electronics Supervisor	
Job Description – Operations Center Supervisor	
Job Description – Plant Supervisor	
Job Description – Track Supervisor	
Job Description – Vehicles Supervisor	

AGREEMENT

This Agreement is between Bombardier Transportation (Holdings) USA Inc. ("Company") and the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers AFL-CIO and its affiliated Local Union No. 589 (collectively called "Union"), on the Union's behalf and on behalf of the Company's regular full time Supervisors performing work as: Customer Service, Electronics, Operations Center, Plant, Track and Vehicle Supervisors.

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE AND INTENT

It is the purpose and intent of the parties to this Agreement to achieve and maintain the highest possible degree of efficiency and productivity of Company operations, uninterrupted operations, the highest Supervisor performance consistent with reasonable safety, good health, and continuous effort, and cooperation among officials of the Company and Union and Supervisory work force in a workplace where all Supervisors, supervisory and non-supervisory alike, will be part of a team working closely together in a caring manner to produce quality products and services in a competitive market.

ARTICLE 2 - DEFINITIONS

1. <u>Supervisor</u> - The word "Supervisor" as used in this Agreement applies only to those full time regular Supervisors covered by this Agreement at the John F Kennedy International Airport, with roles and responsibilities outlined in Schedule "A." The union acknowledges the Supervisors are exempt from overtime as they meet all the qualifications under both Federal and State law. Unless otherwise specifically stated, however, only actively employed, full time regular Supervisors and part time regular Supervisors who have completed their probation successfully will be eligible for benefits under this Agreement. All other Supervisors, including seasonal or other temporary Supervisors, will not be part of the bargaining unit but can be employed by the Company and will be covered by and subject to this Agreement only as specifically stated.

- 2. <u>Full Time Supervisor</u> The words "full time regular Supervisor" shall mean any Supervisor designated by the Company as a full time regular Supervisor who has completed the probationary period of employment.
- 3. Part Time Supervisor The words "regular, part time Supervisor" shall mean any Supervisor who works twenty (20) hours or more per week and will be eligible for pro-rated benefits.
- 4. <u>Temporary Supervisor</u> The words "temporary, seasonal, or casual Supervisor" shall mean any Supervisor employed ninety (90) calendar days or less. The period such Supervisor may remain as "temporary" may be extended, to a maximum of one hundred and eighty (180) days with express agreement from the Union. Temporary, seasonal, and casual Supervisors are not subject to the terms in this Agreement.
- 5. Actively Employed The terms "actively employed" or "active employment" shall refer to a Supervisor only during times when he or she is in the active employ of the Company. That is, performing work as scheduled for the rates of pay set forth in this Agreement. It will not refer, for instance, to a Supervisor who is on inactive status due to layoff or paid or unpaid leave of absence. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement or as required by law, Supervisors otherwise eligible for benefits under this Agreement are eligible for such benefits only during periods in which they are actively employed.
- 6. <u>Year</u> The term "year" shall mean the calendar year unless otherwise specifically stated in a particular provision or unless changed by the Company.
- 7. <u>Month</u> The term "month" shall mean the calendar month unless otherwise specifically stated in a particular provision or unless changed by the Company.
- 8. Work Week The term "week or work week" shall mean the calendar week beginning on Sunday at 12:00 A.M. and ending on Saturday at 11:59 P.M. unless otherwise specifically stated in a particular provision.

- 9. <u>Day</u> The term "day" shall mean the calendar day unless otherwise specifically stated in a particular provision.
- 10. <u>Masculine Usage</u> References in this Agreement to masculine nouns and pronouns shall be considered as including females and are used for ease of reference only.
- 11. No Guarantee Nothing in this Agreement is to be construed as a guarantee of daily or weekly hours of work except where the word "guarantee" is used specifically.

ARTICLE 3 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Subject only to the express provisions of this Agreement, and irrespective of the impact upon employment, the topics reserved to the Company's sole control of the management and supervision of its business include, without limitation, the right to direct, plan, control, relocate, sell, and cease operations; to determine and re-determine the number and location of its operations, including moving the work or any of its parts to other areas and the types and amount of work to be handled at each and all of its operations; the right to determine and re-determine the work to be performed, the persons or entities to perform it, and the wages to perform it, including the discretion to study and restudy jobs and place such jobs on or remove them from incentive; the right to determine and re-determine the method, hours, location, and manner of performing necessary work; the right to hire, promote, demote, lay off, and recall Supervisors; the right to discipline, suspend, or discharge Supervisors for just cause; the right to assign or transfer persons in its employ to tasks as needed; the right to introduce new, improved, or otherwise changed methods or machinery, including establishment and maintenance of Supervisor involvement groups; the right to relocate facilities and contract out work for business reasons, including labor costs and other legitimate reasons; the right to adopt and modify from time to time and to enforce through discipline reasonable site policies, rules and regulations and enforce applicable federal, state, and local statutes, rules and regulations and enforce all clauses of the commercial contract with the customer to maintain order, safety and/or efficiency of operations including, for example, those in the Company's Employee Handbook and also rules regarding drug and/or alcohol testing, security and property searches, attendance, and production standards; the right to determine work schedules and shifts, including group or individual shift starting and ending times, to decide the number of Supervisors needed at any particular time, the functions to be performed, including job content, job descriptions, and job standards, and to be the sole judge of the quality and quantity of work required.

- a. Prior to implementing any new or changed policy relating to attendance or substance abuse, the Company will provide the Union with at least fifteen (15) days' advance notice of any new or changed policy, to provide the Union with an opportunity, within this timeframe, to discuss it and otherwise supply input on it prior to its effective date. In addition, without affecting the Company's option to implement or delay the announced effective date of the new or changed policy, the Union will have the right to grieve the reasonableness of the new or changed policy, provided it does so, consistent with Article 13, within fifteen (15) days of its initially announced effective date.
- b. In accordance with its longstanding practice the Company will continue to perform annual Performance Management Processes (PMP). The PMP is based on an overall performance rating of 1 to 5. At the Company's option Supervisors receiving a satisfactory overall rating of 3 and above may receive an increase in their rate of pay. The PMP review process and any possible increase is not subject to the arbitration procedure of the Agreement.
- Technological Changes No portion of this Agreement shall preclude the introduction, termination, or substitution of any technological change to existing products, services, techniques or machinery, or locations of operations.
- 3. Working Managers The Union recognizes that use of working managers and other non-bargaining unit personnel sometimes is a key ingredient to maintain safety, efficiency and productivity of the Company's business. Actual managers may perform bargaining unit work on a limited basis, typically in the area of training, new

- procedures and emergency situations, but will not be used to replace or cause the layoff of a Supervisor.
- 4. <u>Contracting Out</u> The Company reserves the right to contract out work for sound business reasons, so long as it does not cause the layoff or reduction in hours of a Supervisor.
- 5. <u>Customer Prerogatives</u> Because the systems are owned by the Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, the employer shall not be subject to the grievance arbitration procedure if designated representatives of the Port Authority of NY/NJ operate, maneuver, or direct work on the system. This provision does not prohibit Supervisors from grieving discharge from the Company.

ARTICLE 4 - COOPERATION AND NON-DISCRIMINATION

- Rules of Conduct The Union will further and promote the best interests of the Company and encourage Supervisors who are members of the Union to obey all the Company's rules and regulations.
- 2. <u>No Union Discrimination</u> There will be no discrimination against any Supervisor because of his or her activities for or on behalf of the Union or otherwise protected under the National Labor Relations Act, as amended. Such activities are to be conducted on a Supervisor's own time, unless designated representatives are authorized by the Company.
- 3. No Other Discrimination There will be no discrimination against any Supervisor by reason of race, religion, color, creed, national origin, sex, disability or other criterion as those terms are defined by applicable law, including illegal harassment on those bases. In particular, the Union recognizes that the Company, under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) as amended, New York State Human Rights Laws, and other applicable state or local laws, must make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities, unless this causes undue hardship to the Company. In addition, there will be no discrimination against any Supervisor for past,

current, or future military obligations. In particular, the Union recognizes the Company's obligations under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA). As such Supervisors called to active duty will continue to accrue seniority and other covered benefits, as mandated by the Act. In order to comply with the provisions if these Acts, the Union recognizes that the Company may take actions or make decisions, either whole or in part, which are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 5 - WORKWEEK, WORKDAY, OVERTIME AND SCHEDULING

1. Workweek and Workday

- a. The ordinary work week for Supervisors shall not be more than five (5) days in a workweek, with two (2) consecutive days off. Due to customer demands or other business reasons, however, Supervisors may be required to work as necessary. The Company reserves the right to modify the workweek for business reasons. This is primarily due to the fact that the operation runs twenty-four (24) hours per day and seven (7) days per week.
- b. In order to maintain the 24/7 operation of the JFK Site there must be a Supervisor on post at all times. The On-Duty Supervisor shall remain on shift until relieved by the next qualified Employee.
- c. A Supervisor will be permitted a meal period. Should an equipment failure or service interruption occur during a meal or other break, Supervisors will respond immediately but will be paid for their time worked.
- d. If a Supervisor works on a sixth or seventh day in a workweek he will receive additional pay equal to his straight time rate of pay, for each hour worked. The straight time rate is determined by dividing his weekly base pay by 40 hours.
- 2. <u>Scheduling</u> Consistent with business needs, the Company will have the right to adopt and modify, from time to time, shift starting and ending times, starting and quitting

times for individual Supervisors, and meal and break periods. Supervisors are required to respond to system incidents during meal and break periods.

3. <u>Assigned Work</u> - Nothing here shall be construed as a limitation on the Company's right to schedule, transfer or otherwise assign Supervisors as needed.

ARTICLE 6 - SAFETY AND HEALTH

- Commitment to Safety Bombardier Transportation seeks to promote the health and safety of our employees and to do everything possible to prevent occupational accidents and illnesses. It is therefore important that Supervisors understand how everyone contributes to a safe and healthy work environment. Supervisors must:
 - Set an example to other employees by following the established safety policies of the Site.
 - Ensure employees are aware of the hazards and dangers in the workplace and how to work safely.
 - Follow and conform to all current statutory requirements and workplace health and safety policies and procedures applicable to the JFK Site.
 - Ensure the appropriate type and level of training to enable employees to perform their work safely.
 - Make available to every employee appropriate equipment to ensure Health and Safety.
 - Maintain a vigilant and continuing interest in all Health and Safety matters relevant to both company and staff.
 - Immediately report any safety violation and accidents by complying with established Accident Reporting procedures and ensure that all required forms/paperwork is completed with the proper details.
 - Actively participate in the investigation of all safety accidents, violations and near misses that occur during the supervisors shift and assist in any other safety investigation, as required.

- Maintain confidentiality during the investigation of an accident/incident to ensure employee's reasonable expectation of privacy and so as not to compromise the investigation.
- Always wear or use the protective equipment that is required for the task or location.
- Immediately eliminate or reduce safety hazards. Any Supervisor that receives a concern of a safety hazard, or observes one must immediately correct to reduce or eliminate the hazards.
- Supervisors must ensure they understand the safety requirements of the job prior
 to starting work, as outlined in the System Safety Program Plan (SSPP). If they
 are not comfortable that the task can be completed safely or have not been properly
 trained, they should notify the System Safety Manager and the Line Manager.

A failure to comply with this Commitment to Safety will result in disciplinary action up to and including discharge.

- 2. <u>Defective Equipment</u> Immediately, but in no event later than the end of his or her shift, any Supervisor who observes a defect in equipment or vehicles must report all such defects on a form furnished by the Employer to the Employee's Line Manager.
- 3. <u>Smoking</u> Consistent with rules adopted and maintained by the Employer or the JFK International Airport, and in recognition that cigarette and other forms of smoking and other use of tobacco products are recognized to be a serious environmental, safety, and health problem, smoking or other use of tobacco is permissible only as specifically directed by the Employer or Airport. In addition, smoking by Supervisors is not to interfere in any way with the efficient performance of a Supervisor's scheduled duties and work hours.
- 4. <u>Facilities</u> Given the industrial and public nature of operations the Supervisors and the Company agree the facilities will be maintained in as neat and orderly fashion as possible.

ARTICLE 7 - UNIFORMS/ TOOLS/ SIDA BADGE

- 1. <u>Uniforms</u> JFK Customer Service Supervisors are issued uniforms and will continue to receive a stipend of \$50 per month to launder and maintain the uniforms.
- Safety Shoes The Company will reimburse up to one hundred & fifty dollars
 (\$150.00) annually toward the purchase of safety shoes/boots, upon presentation of a
 proper receipt of purchase.
- a Security Identification Display Area (SIDA) Badge, which must be worn in full view while working. In order to obtain a SIDA badge each employee, including Supervisors, will have to go through a Transportation Security Administration (TSA) background check. The badge is re-certified annually and the cost is to be paid by the Supervisor. The Employer will reimburse the cost incurred to obtain the badge upon the employee obtaining it. In the event the Supervisor is unable to maintain a valid SIDA Badge he will be granted an unpaid grace period of no longer than three (3) weeks to resolve the issue. If he cannot obtain the badge within the grace period, his employment will be terminated. The grace period may be extended under extraordinary circumstances, with agreement between Company and Union.

ARTICLE 8 - REPORTING FOR WORK

- 1. <u>Advance Call Off</u> When unable to report for work, every Supervisor must notify the Company /manager on duty at least four (4) hours before his scheduled reporting time, if possible.
- 2. <u>Advance Notice Before Return</u> On reporting for work after any absence, the Supervisor must notify the Company on the day before he intends to report.
- 3. <u>Notice to Manager</u> Notices under this Article shall be given to the Supervisor's immediate Manager or as otherwise assigned by the Company.

ARTICLE 9 - PAID TIME OFF

1. Due to the 24/7 nature of the JFK AirTrain there are no defined "Holidays" or Vacation Shutdown periods. Supervisors are entitled to Paid Time Off (PTO) in accordance with the following:

Years of Continuous Service Completed	Vacation	Holidays	Total days of Paid Time Off (PTO)
1 to 4 Years	10 Days	12 Days	22 Days
5 to 9 Years	15 Days	12 Days	27 Days
10 or more	20 Days	12 Days	32 Days

- a. Supervisors begin to earn paid time off from the point of their initial employment. New employees hired on or before the 15th of the month begin to accrue PTO during that month. New Supervisors hired on or after the 16th of the month begin to accrue PTO entitlement the following month.
- b. Supervisors must be actively at work for more than half of the scheduled workdays in the month to be eligible for PTO accrual. PTO will be counted as time worked in the month.
- c. Supervisors must take paid time off during the year they are accrued. No days may be carried over into the following year and no payment will be made of unused days.
- d. No unearned PTO will be paid to a Supervisor upon termination of employment, for any reason.
- e. Although PTO may be used prior to earning the time, should the Supervisor's employment be terminated, for any reason, prior to earning all the PTO he has been paid, he will be required to refund the amount of PTO overpaid to him. Such amount may be withheld from his final pay check.

- 2. **Scheduling** Due to the 24/7 operation of the Site mandatory shift coverage must be provided. The PTO listed above as vacation must be scheduled in workweek increments, in advance, and approved by the Supervisor's Manager. Conflicts regarding scheduling of PTO will be determined by seniority, and ability to do the job.
- 3. Carry-over of unused vacation All vacation must be scheduled and used in the calendar year it is accrued. On the rare occasion, the Company may request that the Supervisor not take scheduled vacation due to an unforeseen business event. In such cases the Supervisor may carry-over his unused vacation into the following year. Any carried-over vacation not used by March 31st will be paid to the Supervisor, at his current hourly rate, on the next possible pay date following March 31st.

<u>ARTICLE 10 – SENIORITY</u>

- 1. <u>Definition</u> "Seniority" in this Agreement means a Supervisor's length of continuous service in the Company's employ, as measured from the Supervisor's most recent date of hire by the Company, which will mean the first day in the role of Supervisor, regardless of the department. Previous time employed as a Supervisor in another Bombardier site will be recognized as the Supervisor's seniority date. To the extent that a Supervisor has the same last date of hire as another Supervisor, their seniority rank will be determined by *lottery*. "Seniority" and "length of continuous service" are used interchangeably in this Agreement except as otherwise stated. The Company agrees to provide a Seniority List to the Union, on January 1st of each year.
- 2. <u>Breaks in Seniority</u> Seniority will be broken and employment will terminate when a Supervisor:
 - a. Quits, retires or dies.
 - b. Is discharged.
 - c. Is laid off or absent due to illness, injury or any other reason more than six (6) consecutive months. Employees who are terminated after six months of absence and are medically cleared to return to work, within months 6 to 12, will be placed on a Preferential Rehiring List and will be required to accept the first available position, for which he is qualified, without loss of seniority. The Employee must

advise the Site Human Resources Business Partner (HRBP) as soon as they are medically cleared to return to work. Failure to notify the Site HRBP or failing to return to work within seven (7) days of being recalled will result in the loss of his preferential rehiring rights. Any dispute regarding the Employee's fitness for duty shall be referred to an Independent Medical Examiner (IME) for final adjudication.

- d. Fails to return to work at the end of a Company-approved leave of absence unless physically or mentally incapacitated proved to the Company's satisfaction.
- e. Works during a Company-approved leave of absence without the express, written permission of the Company.
- f. Fails to return to work following layoff within seven (7) days after being recalled to work by a certified letter mailed to the last address furnished the Company by the Supervisor.
- g. Is absent for three (3) or more working days without approval from the Company, or fails to notify the Company of absence within the same period; or
- h. Accepts other employment for pay while on leave of absence unless expressly permitted in writing by the terms of the leave of absence.
- i. This will apply to an individual involuntarily laid off who loses his seniority and employment but is rehired by the Company.
- 3. Probation Newly hired Supervisors, who are not current employees of Employer, will serve a probationary period of employment for twelve (12) months. Said Supervisors will become Union members after thirty (30) days. During that twelve (12) month period, the Company may discharge such a Supervisor without need to establish cause and without access to the contractual grievance-arbitration procedure except to contest an unfair pay grievance. A newly hired Supervisor who successfully completes probation will have seniority retroactive to his first day worked. Probationary periods may be extended at Company discretion, with approval of the Union.

An employee who is promoted or transferred from the Site or another Bombardier facility will serve a probationary period of six (6) months. Said Supervisors will become Union members after thirty (30) days. During that six (6) month period, the

Company may discharge such a Supervisor without need to establish cause and without access to the contractual grievance-arbitration procedure except to contest an unfair pay grievance. The Employee may return to his previous position, at his previous rate of pay, and contingent upon the position being available, without loss of seniority and benefits. Probationary periods may be extended at Company discretion, with approval of the Union.

- 4. <u>Company Hire Date</u> Begins with date of hire and ends with termination of employment, including retirement. Company Hire Date and Job Classification Seniority Date are the same when a Supervisor has only as a Supervisor during their entire period of employment.
- 5. <u>Job Classification Seniority Date</u> Begins with the date a Supervisor is moved into the Supervisor job classification.
 - a. Company Hire Date determines:
 - Eligibility for certain benefits
 - Eligibility for pension
 - Vacation eligibility
 - b. Job Classification Seniority Date determines the order a Supervisor is eligible to select:
 - Shift Work Schedule
 - Paid Time Off scheduling
 - Overtime

ARTICLE 11 - NO STRIKES - NO LOCKOUTS

1. No Strikes

- a. The Union, its officers, other officials, and members will not initiate, authorize, sanction, or participate in any strikes, or any other concerted activities, including, without limitation, sympathy strikes, boycotts, secondary boycotts, refusals to work or otherwise handle merchandise, picketing (including informational), work stoppages, slowdowns, sitdowns, sickouts, overtime or holiday work refusals, or any other interference with or interruption of the Company's operations or its Supervisors and will use every reasonable effort to prevent or end such activity if it commences, including working as scheduled and crossing a picket line at any place of business. Individuals, including those on inactive status and those on probation, who engage in such prohibited conduct will be subject to discharge. Imposed discipline, including discharge, will be considered to have been imposed for cause under this Agreement in arbitration and otherwise.
- b. Whether conduct constitutes a sympathy strike is a grievable and arbitrable dispute under this Agreement.
- 2. <u>No Lockouts</u> The Company agrees that there will be no lockout during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 12 - JURY DUTY/ BEREAVEMENT/ MILITARY LEAVE

1. Required Jury Duty - A Supervisor subpoenaed for jury duty will receive the straight time pay lost as a result of such service, less the jury fee received, up to a maximum of thirty (30) days. The Supervisor will furnish a jury service certificate or other documentation acceptable to the Company to show the time served and the amount received for such service, together with pay or other fees received for such service. The Supervisor must immediately notify the Company after receiving notice to appear for jury service, thus allowing the Company the opportunity to possibly request a rescheduling of jury duty due to compelling business reasons. Failure to submit the notice in a timely manner could result in the forfeiture of paid wages.

- 2. Bereavement Leave In the event of a death of a Supervisor's spouse or children, Supervisors may be granted up to five (5) consecutive days off with pay to attend to funeral matters. In the event of the death of someone in the immediate family, including natural, adoptive, and step parents, sisters, brothers, and spouse's parents, Supervisors will be granted three (3) consecutive days off with pay. Supervisors will be granted one (1) day off with pay to attend the funeral of a brother or sister in law, grandparent, or grandchild.
- 3. <u>Military Leave</u> Supervisors participating in military reserve training exercises will receive time-off with pay for up to a two (2) week period annually. In addition, the Company complies with all applicable requirements of the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), and state and local law relevant to eligible uniformed personnel and reservists.

ARTICLE 13 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION

1. Steps

- a. <u>Oral Step</u> Any difference of opinion concerning the interpretation or application of any term of this Agreement must first be discussed with the Supervisor's Manager-- with or without a Union steward's help, at the Supervisor's option -- within seven (7) calendar days of the date when the Supervisor or the Union was aware or should have been aware of the facts underlying the difference of opinion, and the Company will notify the Union of its decision within seven (7) calendar days of the initial discussion.
- b. Written Step 1 If the matter remains unresolved, the Supervisor and/or Union must file the grievance, in writing, with the Supervisor's Site's Human Resources Business Partner within twenty (20) calendar days of when Supervisor or the Union was aware or should have been aware of the facts underlying the difference of opinion. The Human Resources Business Partner will give the Company's answer, in writing, within seven (7) calendar days following a meeting held to discuss the grievance.

- c. Written Step 2 If the grievance still remains unresolved, the Union must appeal it, in writing, to the Site Manager within fifteen (15) calendar days of the mailing date of the Written Step 1 answer. The Site Manager will give the Company's answer, in writing, within seven (7) calendar days following the Written Step 2 meeting.
- d. Written Step 3 If the grievance still remains unresolved, the dispute must be appealed, in writing, to arbitration within fifteen (15) calendar days of the mailing date of the Written Step 2 answer, and otherwise as specified in 3(a) of this Article.
- e. <u>Dealing Directly with Manager</u> Nothing here will prevent the Supervisor from discussing any problem with his or her manager at any time, with or without the Union's involvement, prior to initiating a formal grievance.

2. Arbitration

- a. <u>Appeal to Arbitration</u> Consistent with applicable law, in connection with every type of grievance, including those which allege employment discrimination in any form or any other violation of law, the right to arbitrate such a grievance will be in place of any right the aggrieved Supervisor or the Union might otherwise have to pursue such grievance, or the facts underlying such grievance, administratively or in court, including a right to trial by jury. But only the Union will have the right to determine whether to appeal any grievance to arbitration. But if the grievance concerns a legal right, and the Union decides not to appeal it to arbitration, the aggrieved Supervisor will retain the option to pursue it administratively and, if he or she prefers, in court.
- b. <u>Arbitrator Selection</u> Upon referral to arbitration, one of the following permanent arbitrators, to be used on a rotating basis, will hear and decide the case:
 J.J. Pierson or Michael Capone.
- c. <u>Arbitrator's Authority</u> Unless otherwise agreed by the Company and Union, the arbitrator may consider and decide no more than one grievance and only the particular grievance presented to him or her in writing, and his or her decision will

be based solely upon interpretation of provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator will have no authority to alter, delete or add to any of the provisions of the Agreement or to substitute his or her judgment for that of management in discipline or other matters. With regard to any arbitration for a termination of a Supervisor, the Arbitrator is bound by the definition of Just Cause under Article 14 of the Agreement. His or her decision will be final and binding upon the Company, the Supervisors, and the Union. In a legal right proceeding, the arbitrator will have the same authority as a court or jury to award relief.

- d. <u>Costs</u> Costs of the arbitration, including the fee and expenses of the arbitrator (and the original copy of a transcript, but only if the parties mutually agree to have one), will be shared by the parties. Each party will pay any fees of its own representatives and witnesses for time lost.
- e. <u>Time Limits</u> Failure by the Union to proceed within the time specified at any step will result in abandonment of the grievance, or, if the grievance is not filed within the time limits, in dismissal of the grievance, except to the extent that the parties mutually agree in writing to extend such deadlines. Failure by the Company to proceed within the time specified at any step will result in automatically moving the grievance to the next step.
- f. Expedited Arbitration Any Arbitration dealing with the termination of a Supervisor will be done on an expedited basis, which will be thirty (30) days from the date of termination. The Supervisor will remain on the payroll during this time. The Arbitrator will be required to schedule and hear the case within thirty (30) days of the date of termination and issue an oral decision after presentation of the facts by both sides and follow-up with a written decision, if requested by either the Union and Company. Time limits may only be extended under this section if mutually agreed by the Union and Company.
- g. <u>Company Right to Grieve</u> Nothing in this Article will prevent the Company, in its discretion, from grieving, so long as the Company adheres to the filing and appeal time limits, and the Union adheres to the meeting and answer limitations.

ARTICLE 14 - DISCHARGE AND DISCIPLINE

- 1. <u>Just Cause</u> The Union acknowledges the importance of Supervisors acting as the direct manager of the JFK Employees. Because of the sensitivity of the job and the fact they act in a management role, Supervisors may be terminated for Just Cause if their manager and or Site Director determines the Supervisor is not performing his job under the policies of Bombardier and/or the terms of the Agreement. In any arbitration concerning a Supervisor's termination the Employer will furnish the Union and the Supervisor with a letter containing the reason or reasons for discharge or discipline.
- 2. Automatic Grounds for Dismissal Discharge or discipline imposed for: theft or other dishonesty; intentional falsification of Company records or intentionally providing false information related to job responsibilities; striking or threatening a customer, employee, manager, or other person with bodily harm; insubordination, including failure to cooperate in an investigation; the use or distribution of drugs or alcohol on the Company's property without the Company's knowledge and permission; reporting to work or working with drugs or alcohol in your system; fighting; possession of firearms on Company property; misappropriation or misuse of the Company's or a customer's confidential information; dishonesty or other unethical behavior; reckless or willful destruction of the Company's property; sleeping or giving the appearance of sleeping during working hours; failure to execute the roles & responsibilities of a Supervisor as outlined in the job description in Schedule A; or other incidents involving threatened or actual violence or moral turpitude will be regarded as grounds for dismissal. The Company may add to or amend this list of offenses by rules of conduct. To sustain discharge or other discipline, however, the Company must prove, by a preponderance of the evidence that the Supervisor engaged in the misconduct.
- 3. <u>Discipline for Absenteeism</u> Absenteeism, including overstaying breaks, taking excessive breaks, tardiness, leaving work early and failing to follow established report-off or report-on procedures, including those under this Article, will be a basis for discipline, up to and including discharge, in accordance with Company Policy.

4. <u>Notice</u> - No discipline shall be made that involves any offense of which the department head has had knowledge ten (10) calendar days or more, except where a civil action or criminal proceeding results from the offense. Such time may be extended upon notification to the union and agreement.

ARTICLE 15 - RATES OF PAY

1. <u>Rates of Pay</u> - Effective August 1, 2017 the rates of pay for a Supervisor will be based on the following schedule:

Time as a Supervisor	Customer Service Supervisor	All Other Supervisors
New w/o certification	\$62,475.00	\$72,000.00
Certification to 3 years	\$66,640.00	\$76,640.00
3 to 7 years	\$68,306.00	\$78,556.00
7+ years	\$74,137.00	\$85,262.00

Supervisors are required to obtain the required certifications for the department they supervise. During the initial hire or promotion into such role, they will enter a training period at which time they will be focused on obtaining required certification(s). Upon successfully obtaining the Certifications required his base rate of pay will be increased per the above schedule.

Should a new Supervisor be hired directly into the role requiring specific technical knowledge that is not easily trained internally, the Company may apply previous service years in determining his starting salary.

2. Shift Differentials - A Shift Differential of ten percent (10%) shall be paid to each bargaining unit Supervisor regularly assigned to work a shift where the majority of hours are worked between 2:00PM and 5:59 AM, in a workday.

3. <u>Incentive Plan</u> – Should the Operations & Maintenance contract with the Bombardier customer, the Port Authority of NY/NJ, be modified to include a bonus or incentive plan for Bombardier employees. The JFK Supervisors will be eligible to be included in such plan.

6

ARTICLE 16 - BENEFIT PLANS

- 1. Effective upon signing this Agreement, and for the duration of this Agreement, the parties agree on the following benefit programs:
 - a. Bargaining Unit Supervisors will continue to be eligible to participate in the Company provided Health & Welfare Plans. The costs and benefits under this Welfare Plan will be credited against the requirements of any law requiring the same, in whole or in part, during the term of this Agreement. To the extent the Welfare Plan changes during the term of this Agreement, eligible Supervisors will participate in the cost of the health and welfare plan such that their contribution shall be equal to other Supervisor contributions at other locations of the Company for the same health and welfare plan. The Company will determine the insurance carriers, if any, for the benefits provided to the Supervisors. To the extent that an inconsistency arises between language in this Article and the underlying insurance contract, if any, the terms of the applicable insurance contract will prevail.
 - b. Supervisors, hired prior to September 1, 2013 will maintain participation in the defined benefit pension plan, Bombardier Corporation Retirement Plan. Supervisors hired after September 1, 2013 will participate in the Bombardier Transportation 401(k) Savings plan in accordance with the Plan. To the extent the Pension Program changes during the term of this Agreement, eligible Supervisors will receive the benefit of any such changes after notification to and discussion with the Union to provide the opportunity to best understand the effect of such changes. To the extent an inconsistency arises between language of this Article and the underlying terms of the provisions of the Pension Program, the terms of the Pension Program will prevail.

- c. Supervisors, hired prior to September 1, 2013 will maintain participation in Bombardier Transportation 401(k) Savings Plan, in accordance with the Plan.
- COBRA To the extent required by law, a Supervisor will have the opportunity to
 continue group insurance coverage upon termination of employment, by enrolling in
 the COBRA plans offered according to terms established by the Company consistent
 with the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), as amended.
- 3. Possible New Laws During the term of this Agreement, federal, state and/or local laws may be passed, or become effective, and require the Company to provide certain medical or other related benefits that may duplicate or compare with benefits provided in this Agreement. In this event, and to the extent these laws do not permit the Company to credit cost and benefits under this Agreement against those required by law, the Company may reduce the benefits to be provided by this Agreement without violating this Agreement to avoid any actual, practical, or otherwise unreasonable duplication or partial redundancy of cost or benefits. Additionally, if any such law or ordinance requires a new expanded benefit or coverage, a lower deductible, or any other requirement that adds cost to existing coverage(s), such additional cost will be shared equally between the Company and each covered Supervisor.

ARTICLE 17 - UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

The Company, in its discretion and upon request, may grant a Supervisor a leave of absence. Such leave will be without pay, without prejudice to the requesting Supervisor's seniority for bidding purposes only or other rights under this Agreement, and without continued benefits for the duration of the leave, except for continuation of Company-paid group health insurance plan benefits, to the extent the site is subject to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or other applicable law during a leave associated with any authorized leave under FMLA. No benefits will accrue when a Supervisor is on a paid or unpaid leave of absence. The Company will retain all legal rights and options under applicable law. Application for a leave of absence must be made in writing to the Company representative, and any such leave must be approved in writing by the Company. Generally, any approved leave of absence will be for a period determined by

the Company, in conjunction with competent medical opinion as necessary, but such leave may be extended for reasonable cause by the Company. Consistent with the Supervisor's seniority, ability, and experience if work is available, a Supervisor granted a leave of absence will be subject to reemployment by the Company at his or her former or an equivalent position at the end of such leave or, depending on circumstances, shall be subject to reemployment as soon as work becomes available. Any Supervisor who, while on leave of absence, obtains employment with another employer without having first obtained prior written permission from the Company will be subject to discharge. Any Supervisor's failure to report for employment to the Company at the end of his or her leave will be considered a voluntary resignation by the Supervisor except as otherwise required by applicable law.

ARTICLE 18 – TRAINING

- 1. Each newly hired, or promoted, Supervisor will be required to complete required training and obtain safety and/or security based certification(s) in the department he will supervise. Should he fail to complete the necessary certification(s) within one (1) year of hire he may be terminated, if no other position exists for which he is qualified.
- 2. Some tasks have specific requirements to maintain certification for a defined period of time, thereby requiring re-certification upon expiration. A Supervisor requiring certification to do a job will be allowed two (2) opportunities to successfully pass the initial certification, providing the training is available. A Supervisor certified to do a job requiring re-certification will have no more than three (3) opportunities to complete the re-certification process and testing. Should he fail to successfully recertify to do the job after three (3) attempts, his employment will be terminated, if no other position exists for which he is qualified.

ARTICLE 19 - JOINT SUPERVISOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

During the term of this Agreement, the Company and the Union will form a joint Supervisor-Management Committee to continue to monitor and improve quality and quantity and to explore ways that can add to Supervisor involvement, including valuable

input that Supervisors will have to improve Company operations. It is the intent of the Company to form a safety committee.

ARTICLE 20 - UNION VISITATION/ COMMUNICATION

- 1. <u>Union Access</u> The Company will assist the Union in the administration of this Agreement by permitting access to the JFK facilities for the purpose of adjustment of disputes and to investigate working conditions, provided that there is no interruption in work activities and performance to the customer. Prior to seeking entry to the site, the Union shall notify the site director who will make the arrangements within a reasonable period of time. Discussion with covered Supervisors will occur only on non-working time and in non-working areas.
- 2. <u>Bulletin Boards</u> The Company will permit the Union to use a bulletin board on the Company's premises, at a mutually agreed upon location. The purpose of the bulletin board will be to inform Supervisors, in non-inflammatory terms, of Union business that affects the bargaining unit. Before posting any item of information, however, the Union will provide a copy to the Company, and the Company will have final approval as to whether the item is posted, to ensure that the subject matter will not directly or indirectly interfere with the Company's operations, including the Company's Board and its functions in any manner whatsoever. But the Company's approval to post material will not be withheld unreasonably.

ARTICLE 21 - UNION CONSULTATION

In the event, any full-time Supervisor is permanently laid off without the likelihood of continuing employment at the site, or due to replacement of the Company at the site, the Company agrees to meet with the Union to discuss the effects of such action.

ARTICLE 22 - SEPARABILITY

If any term of this Agreement becomes invalid or unenforceable by reason of any existing or future federal or state law, directive, order, rule, regulation, or decision by a court of last resort, such invalidity or unenforceability will not affect or impair any other terms or provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 23 - SOLE AND COMPLETE AGREEMENT

- 1. The parties specifically agree that this Agreement is the sole and complete agreement between them and that any other previous agreement or agreements, oral or written, expressed or implied, are of no effect during the term of this Agreement.
- 2. No modification of this Agreement or other agreement between the parties will be effective without the express written, signed agreement of the Union and the Company.

ARTICLE 24 - UNION SHOP

1. Union Shop/ Condition of Employment

- a. All Supervisors covered by the terms of this Agreement shall be required to become and remain members of the Union or pay the appropriate agency fee as a condition of employment from and after the thirty-first (31st) day following the date of their employment or the Effective Date of this Agreement, whichever is later.
- b. If a Supervisor as described in this Article shall fail to obtain and maintain membership in the Union or pay the appropriate agency fee, as provided above, the Company shall within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from the Union (the Supervisor having been similarly notified) separate such Supervisor that fails to tender payment of Initiation Fees and/or dues or agency fee within the thirty (30) day period. The Company and the Union will make every effort to

explain these rights and to ensure full understanding of the consequences if a Supervisor fails to tender payment of Initiation Fees and/or dues or agency fees.

- Check-Off Dues The Company shall deduct an amount specified by the Union on the first pay period of the month regularly monthly Union membership dues or agency fees. The total accumulation of dues and agency fees collected will be remitted to the Union no later than the 15th of the following month.
- 3. Authorization for Check Off Dues "I hereby authorize and direct the Company to deduct from my pay, the Union membership initiation fee, dues and assessments or agency fees in the amounts fixed in accordance with the By-Laws of Local Union 589 and the Constitution of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers and pay same to said Local Union in accordance with the terms of the Bargaining Agreement between the employers and the Union. This authorization shall be irrevocable for a period of one (1) year from the date hereof or until the termination date of said Agreement, whichever occurs sooner, and I agree that this authorization shall be automatically renewed and irrevocable for successive periods of one (1) year unless revoked by written notice to you and the Union ten (10) days prior to the expiration of each one year period, or of each applicable bargaining agreement between the Employer and the Union, whichever occurs sooner." (Fees, dues and assessments covered by this authorization are not deductible as charitable contributions for Federal Income Tax purposes.)

"Signature		_
Date	Department	, ,

- 4. <u>Deduction of Dues</u> Deductions shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of said Authorization for Check-Off of Dues or agency fees, together with the provisions of this Section of the Agreement.
- Authorization for Deduction A properly executed copy of such Authorization for Check-Off of Dues or agency fee form and a properly executed copy of Obligation of I.B.E.W. Membership form for each Supervisor for whom Union membership dues or

agency fees are to be deducted hereunder, shall be delivered to the Financial Secretary of the Union within five (5) working days after said forms have been executed by any Supervisor being hired or transferred into the bargaining unit. The Financial Secretary of the Union shall deliver to the Payroll Department of the Company the executed copies of Authorization for Check-Off of Dues or agency fee forms. Deductions shall be made thereunder only under Authorization for Check-Off of Dues or agency fee forms which have been properly executed and are in effect. Any Authorization for Check-Off of Dues or agency fees which is incomplete or in error will be returned to the Union by the Company.

ARTICLE 25 - NEW HIRES

- 1. Additions to Bargaining Unit When there is a need to add to the bargaining unit, the Company will contact the Union to refer qualified applicants at it sole discretion. The Company will specify to the Union the qualifications needed, so that the Union may refer a qualified candidate. If the Union has a person who fits the needed profile, it will refer the candidate or candidates to the Company within 72 hours of the Company's request, not counting Saturdays and Sundays. The Company will have the right to decide whether to hire any candidate or request another candidate from the Union.
- 2. <u>Non-Discrimination</u> Any Union referral will comply with all existing federal, state, and local laws, including all affirmative action and other non-discrimination legal obligations.

ARTICLE 26 - DURATION AND TERMINATION

1. This Agreement will be in full force and effect from August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018. This Agreement may be terminated or otherwise modified at the expiration of its term by either party's giving the other party written notice by certified mail of its intention to terminate or modify the Agreement, so long as at least sixty (60) days' notice is given prior to its expiration.

 In default of such notice, the Agreement will continue in full force and effect upon the same terms, and conditions from year to year thereafter from the originally scheduled expiration date.

ARTICLE 27 - SHOP STEWARD

- 1. The Employer recognizes the right of the Union to designate one of the Supervisors employed by the Employer as a Shop Steward. The Union reserves the right to remove the Shop Steward at any time. There shall be an alternate Shop Steward selected by the Union when the regular Shop Steward is unavailable.
- 2. The powers and authority of the Shop Steward shall be confined to the investigation and presentation of grievances in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 3. A Shop Steward has no authority to take strike action or any other action interrupting the Employer's business, except as authorized by official action of the Union. No Supervisor, Shop Steward or group of Supervisors shall have the right to modify or waive any provisions of this Agreement or settle any dispute with the Employer.
- 4. A Shop Steward shall be permitted to investigate, present and process grievances on or off the property of the Employer without loss of time or pay. Any Shop Steward and/or alternate required to appear in Court or at the National Labor Relations Board, or any arbitration proceedings in any matter affecting this Agreement shall be paid only for the straight time hours he/she would have worked in any such day.
- 5. The Shop Steward shall enjoy top seniority in regard to layoff and rehiring providing he/she has the ability to do the work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party h	as caused this document to be executed by the
hand of its proper officer or officers and m	ade it effective this day of,
Bombardier Transportation (Holdings) USA, Inc.	Local 589, I.B.E.W./AFL-CIO
Anna Cicio Director, Human Resources	Ricardo Sanchez General Chairman
(Date)	(Date)
Ralph DeCostro Director, Human Resources	
(Date)	

SCHEDULE A - Job Descriptions

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Business title Supervisor – Customer Service		Reporting Line (title of position) Customer Service/PR Manager	
Division / Group Function Systems	Business Unit/Department	Work location JFK	Country USA
Career path General Management	Job family O&M	Effective date	Global Grade

Job Content Specifications

Purpose of the job

Supervisor is responsible to oversee and supervise a shift of employees that provide first rate customer service to the public on trains and in stations. Responsible to advise Operations Center about events that affect customer service and to communicate clear and effective directions to customer service personnel to ensure operations are conducted safely, reliably, efficiently and in conformance with existing rules and procedures. The supervisor is responsible to evaluate, coach and develop employees to ensure they are competent and have and maintain required skills to effectively perform their job task efficiently and safely. Responsible to enforce Company policies and levy discipline.

...20 %

...20 %

...20 %

Key responsibilities and challenges

- Administrative Required to ensure all revenue generation documents are accurate and complete and signed off. Audit employees' work activities and verify work has been completed according to work procedures that includes safety, quantity and quality standards as stated in Company documents that control and govern customer service standards. Responsible to record accurate and complete information in Company systems, attendance, overtime, discipline, incident reports, vehicle and station inspections, etc. Ensure books and records comply with all legal reporting requirements. Enforce Company policy as it pertains to accurate and complete records. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Operations Required to lead Customer Service Shift briefings and participate in Site briefings. Supervise special events, coordinates activities with emergency responders. Supervises emergencies and service disruptions in accordance with established procedures and develop strategies to ensure immediate response and quick action to assist customers and to ensure the safety of employees and customers. Supervise employees' work activities to minimize events that cause service disruptions, safety infractions, and ensure that work is executed in accordance with rules and procedures and meets commercial agreements. Effectively use resources to support revenue service, maintenance assignments and special events. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service.
- Maintenance Required to conduct shift briefings to assign work tasks to employees, coordinate work activities across department lines so that service commitments and service quality factors are met, ensure employees are qualified/certified to perform assigned job tasks. Audit job tasks to evaluate and improve employees' technical and safety proficiencies, to increase efficiencies and to ensure work is in complies with standards, procedures and regulations. Develop and implement contingency plans for changes or events that affect planned work schedules. Required to oversee and review station and vehicle inspections accordance with established standards. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and

- Training & Development Required to train, qualify and certify employees to perform job tasks proficiently, efficiently and safely. Evaluate employees' performance and provide them with feedback to improve their skill levels. Conduct on-the-job training, re-training, re-certifications and examinations as established by the Company to qualify employees to perform work tasks. Ensure employees are trained and qualified to perform work activities. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Safety Responsible to communicate to and train employees on safety standards and procedures. To protect their own safety as well as that of their co-workers and subordinates. Conduct safety audits, risk assessments and perform other safety related measures to reduce and eliminate safety hazards. Enforce the Company's safety policies and standards, correct unacceptable behavior and levy discipline when an employee engages in unacceptable behavior. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Organizational Specifications

Number of hierarchical levels between this position and the Group President (don't count President)

5...

...20 %

Number of hierarchical levels and total number of direct reports reporting to this position

1/ Min 3 & Max 15 ...

Bombardier Competency Specifications

- 1 Holding People Accountable...
- 4 Communication

2 Team Leadership...

- 5 Developing Others...
- Listening, Understanding & Responding...
- 6 Flexibility...

Application Specifications

Transfer possibilities National / International / Global Application send till DD/MM/YYYY

E-Mail / Contact ...@....com

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Grading Specifications

Qualifications & Functional Knowledge

High School Diploma or Equivalent and Associates Degree, 2 years of supervisory experience or completion of Lead Tech program. Intermediate skill levels in Microsoft Office and Windows Operating Applications.

Required Knowledge of the Business

- Qualified in Customer Service work procedures.
- Certified in all Customer Service Certification requirements.
- Qualified in all Safe Work Procedures and Company Safety Standards.
- Failure management strategies.
- Ability to detect and respond to employee and safety issues.
- Ability to execute work activities according to availability and reliability metrics.
- Ability to plan work and work schedules, implement occupancy and work permits and clearances.
- Ability to board trains from ground level (3 feet from ground to door).
- Create and implement work schedules, develop and implement contingency plans for emergencies and other events that affect revenue service.
- Adhere to organization's targets, budget, overtime, penalities, etc.
- Ensure work schedules are balanced and penalities are minimized or avoided.
- Adhere to all policies, protocols and procedures to report employee and system related events.
- Adhere to all communication protocols to report status of system to management, client and emergency responders. ...

Leadership – Management or Technical

Lead a shift of employees, define and communicate work activities, performance standards, monitor and measure employees' performance against standards, safety rules, work standards and operation metrics. Create effective relationships with managers, peers, subordinates and clients by displaying conduct that is professional, respectful and inspires trust, and reflects a shared purpose to achieve organization's goals. Follows up and follows through to meet commitments, resolve issues and communications are complete and fulfilled.

Problem Solving

Competent in solving problems and can execute logical and effective corrective measures as they pertain to work tasks and employees. Can determine appropriate measures to take to prevent or minimize reoccurrence of work related and employee problems and issues. Can collaborate across departments to effectively manage system operating plans, emergencies and events that affect revenue service. Accepts ownership of departmental issues and situations and follows-up and through on commitments, addresses issues and concerns timely and honestly and follows Company policies and established procedures. ...

Area & Nature of Impact

Availability, Reliability, Employee Engagement, Customer Relations, Employee & Labor Relations. ...

Interpersonal & Communication Skills

Exhibits respect for individuals, have the ability to express ideas orally and in writing in accordance with accepted rules of grammar, can provide clear directions and goals. Dress, job knowledge and communications project a desirable and capable image. ...

Additional information and elements to consider

Will require flexibility and willingness to work in a 24/7 shift environment, safety sensitive position that is subject to random alcohol and drug tests, valid driver license in accordance with NY State DMV laws, ...

Data	Management	Specifications
------	------------	-----------------------

Generic / Reference role

Generic / Reference job code

Global Grade

Job family

Sub family (if available)

Cost Center

Approvals

Job profile compiled

Job profile approved by Business (hiring manager)

Job profile approved by Human Resources

Global Grade approved by Compensation

Name, date

Name, date

Name, date

Name, date

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Business title Supervisor – Electronic		Reporting Line (title of position) Wayside Manager		
Division / Group Function Systems	Business Unit/Department	Work location JFK	Country USA	
Career path Engineering	Job family Engineering	Effective date	Global Grade 	

Job Content Specifications

Purpose of the job

Electronic Supervisor is responsible to oversee and supervise the preventive maintenance work of Electronic Technicians that install, calibrate, test, troubleshoot and repair on-line electronic systems. Responsible for in-depth troubleshooting and repair of faults in electronics, communications and control systems. Electronic systems include communications, fare collection equipment, audio and video security equipment. The supervisor is responsible to evaluate, coach and develop employees to ensure they are competent and maintain required skills to effectively perform their job task safely and efficiently. Responsible to enforce Company policies and levy discipline

...10 %

...30 %

...30

%

Key responsibilities and challenges

- Administrative Required to ensure all revenue generating documentation is accurate and complete and signed off. Audit employees' work activities and verify work has been completed according to work procedures that includes safety, quantity and quality standards as stated in Company documents that control and govern standards. Responsible to record accurate and complete information in Company systems, books and records and ensure records comply with all legal reporting requirements. Record, review, track and analyze employee performance, attendance and performance discussions. Enforce Company policy as it pertains to accurate and complete records. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Operations Review proposals from vendors for various maintenance tasks. Create NPRs for chosen vendors. Inspect completed vendor work. Approve vendor's invoices for payment within established procedures. Collaborate across departmental lines to develop and implement strategies to maintain service levels during normal and emergency service. Will supervise employees' and subcontractor work activities to minimize events that cause service disruptions, safety infractions, and ensure that work is executed in accordance with rules and procedures and meets commercial agreements. Effectively use resources to support revenue service, maintenance assignments and special events. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service.
- Maintenance Required to conduct shift briefings to assign work tasks to employees and contractors, coordinate work activities across department lines so that service commitments and service quality factors are met, ensure employees are qualified/certified to perform assigned job tasks. Audit job tasks to evaluate and improve employees' technical and safety proficiencies, to increase efficiencies and to ensure work is in compliance with standards, procedures and regulations. Record, review, track and analyze equipment failures, Service Quality Factors (SQF). Develop and implement contingency plans for changes or events that affect planned work schedules. Required to open and close out work orders in MAXIMO in accordance with established standards. Oversees maintenance work of employees and subcontractors and will include the completion of paperwork and input into MAXIMO. Reports fully and completely to management about all facility maintenance activities that affect safety and revenue service.

Training & Development – Required to train, qualify and certify employees to perform job tasks proficiently, efficiently and safely. Evaluate employees' performance and provide them with feedback to improve their skill levels. Conduct on-the-job training, re-training, re-certifications and examinations as established by the Company to qualify employees to perform work tasks. Ensure employees are trained and qualified to perform work activities. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Safety – Responsible to communicate to and train employees and subcontractors on safety standards and procedures. To protect your own safety as well as the safety of co-workers, passengers, subcontractors and subordinates. Conduct safety audits, risk assessments and perform other safety related measures to reduce and eliminate safety hazards. Enforce the Company's safety policies and standards, correct unacceptable behavior and levy discipline when an employee actions compromises safety. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Organizational Specifications

Number of hierarchical levels between this position and the Group President (don't count President)

5...

Number of hierarchical levels and total number of direct reports reporting to this position

1/5

Bombardier Competency Specifications

- 1 Holding People Accountable...
- 4 Communication

2 Team Leadership...

- Developing Others...
- Listening, Understanding & Responding...
- 6 Flexibility...

Application Specifications

Transfer possibilities National / International / Global Application send till DD/MM/YYYY

E-Mail / Contact ...@....com

%

...20 %

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Grading Specifications

Qualifications & Functional Knowledge

High School Diploma or Equivalent and specialized training from a recognized technical trade school in Electronics, Electrical or Information Technology and 3 years of experience in troubleshooting and repair of electronic communication systems. Advanced skill levels in UNIX, DOS, Microsoft Office, Windows Operating Systems, computer networking and programming skills.

Required Knowledge of the Business includes ability to develop and implement maintenance plans according to work standards, defined intervals and life cycles of equipment and materials. Understand the electronic systems, commercial agreement and their impact on revenue and customer relations. Must be adept at discerning the difference between actual downtime events which can gain contractual exclusions.

- Qualified in Electronic procedures.
- Certified in Electronic Certification requirements.
- Qualified in all Safe Work Procedures and Company Safety Standards.
- Ability to use MAXIMO and have oversight of MAXIMO use by direct reports and subcontractors.
- Ability to create NPRs and track steps from proposal to invoice.
- Ability to detect and respond to employee's and subcontractor's issues and safety concerns.
- Ability to execute work activities according to availability and reliability metrics.
- Ability to plan work and work schedules, activate and de-activate work permits.
- Develop and implement contingency plans for emergencies and other events that affect revenue service.
- Record and track work in Company systems, i.e. MAXIMO.
- Supervise and evaluate subcontractors' work.
- Adhere to organization's targets, budget, overtime, penalities, etc.
- Ensure work schedules are balanced and penalities are minimized or avoided.
- Adhere to all policies, protocols and procedures to report employee and system related events.
- Adhere to all communication protocols to report status of system to management, client and emergency responders.

Leadership – Management or Technical

Lead employees, define and communicate work activities, performance standards, monitor and measure employees' performance against standards, safety rules, work standards and operation metrics. Lead the organization on fare collection activities that revenue collection. Create effective relationships with managers, peers, subordinates and clients by displaying conduct that is professional, respectful and inspires trust, and reflects a shared purpose to achieve organization's goals. Follows up and follows through to meet commitments, resolve issues and communications are complete and fulfilled.

Problem Solving

Competent in solving technical problems and executing logical and effective corrective measures as they pertain to work tasks and employees. Can determine appropriate measures to take to prevent or minimize reoccurrence of work related and employee problems and issues. Can collaborate across departments to effectively manage system operating plans, emergencies and events that affect revenue service. Accepts ownership of departmental issues and situations and follows-up and through on commitments, addresses issues and concerns timely and honestly and follows Company policies and established procedures. ...

Area & Nature of Impact

Availability, Reliability, Service Quality Factors (SQF) Employee Engagement, Customer Relations, Employee & Labor Relations. ...

Interpersonal & Communication Skills

Exhibits respect for individuals, have the ability to express ideas orally and in writing in accordance with accepted rules of grammar, can provide clear directions and goals. Dress, job knowledge and communications project a desirable and capable image. ...

Additional information and elements to consider

Will require flexibility and willingness to work in a 24/7 shift environment, safety sensitive position that is subject to random alcohol and drug tests, valid driver license in accordance with NY State DMV laws. Required to pass a Homeland Security background security check for SIDA badge. Must have physical capability to lift and carry fifty (50) pounds four (4) feet.

Data Manageme	nt Specifications	
Generic / Refe	erence job code	Global Grade

Sub family (if a	available)	Cost Center
•••		•••
Appr	ovals	
Job profile approved by Business (hiring manager)	Job profile approved by Human Resources	Global Grade approved by Compensation
Name, date	Name, date	Name, date
	Generic / Refe	Sub family (if available) Approvals Job profile approved by Business (hiring manager) Job profile approved by Human Resources

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Business title Supervisor – Operations Center		Reporting Line (title of position) Operations Center Manager		
Division / Group Function Systems	Business Unit/Department	Work location JFK	Country USA	
Career path General Management	Job family O&M	Effective date	Global Grade 	

Job Content Specifications

Purpose of the job

The Operations Center Supervisor is the primary Site Shift Leader for all activities that involve the operations of trains, the movement of passengers and posture of wayside system components and personnel. Is responsible to direct and supervise operations center personnel that perform ATC, SCADA, Rapid Response and Access Control. Is responsible to develop and implement strategies to ensure that operations are conducted safely, reliably and efficiently and in conformance with rules and procedures. Takes the leadership role to implement maintenance activities of employees and subcontractors, directs revenue activities during normal and emergency event. Responsible for overseeing and supervising a shift of employees that perform activities that support the operations and maintenance of AirTrain JFK. Responsible to enforce Company policies, operations center rules and levy discipline.

Key responsibilities and challenges

Administrative – Record, review, track and analyze system delays, work and occupancy permits, service levels, incidents, MAXIMO logs, downtime tracking reports, budgets, overtime, attendance, performance discussions and other administrative procedures as required. Follow all communication protocols to inform management, client and airport personnel about all events that affect revenue service. Follow-up and follow-through to ensure commitments are met, issues are resolved and appropriate and complete communication has been fulfilled. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

...20 %

Operations – Develop and implement shift work schedules that effectively and efficiently uses resources to support revenue service. Supervises all revenue activities in accordance with service plan to include service levels, radio communication, spare train utilization, troubleshooting, testing and any other functions which affect the delivery of customer service. Implements contingency plans for service disruptions and emergencies to minimize delays. Ensure vehicles are scheduled for service, inspections, cleaning or repair are available at the scheduled times and locations. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. Works in the position of Operations Center Operator for break periods, lunch and other times to ensure consistency of operations and maintenance.

- Maintenance Required to lead Site Shift briefings and to supervise the safe and efficient execution of work areas, work permits and clearance in accordance with existing rules and procedures. Supervises rail vehicle consists and ensures that the trains are correctly configured for movement into revenue service. Coordinates work activities across department lines so that service commitments and on-time performance can be met. Develop and implement contingency plans for changes or events that affect planned work schedules. Required to close out work orders in MAXIMO in accordance with established standards. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service.
- ...15 %

...20 %

- Training & Development Required to train, qualify and certify employees to perform job tasks proficiently, efficiently and safely. Evaluate employees' performance and provide them with feedback to improve their skill levels. Conduct on-the-job training, re-training, re-certifications and examinations as established by the Company to qualify employees to perform work tasks. Ensure employees are trained and qualified to perform work activities. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Safety Responsible to communicate to and train employees on safety standards and procedures. To protect their own safety as well as the safety of their co-workers and subordinates. Conduct safety audits, risk assessments and perform other safety related to measures to reduce and eliminate safety hazards. Enforce the Company's safety policies and standards, correct unacceptable behavior and levy discipline when an employee engages in unacceptable behavior. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

...20 %

Organizational Specifications

Number of hierarchical levels between this position and the Group President (don't count President)

5...

Number of hierarchical levels and total number of direct reports reporting to this position

1/4

Bombardier Competency Specifications

- 1 Holding People Accountable...
- 4 Communication

2 Team Leadership...

- Developing Others...
- Listening, Understanding & Responding...
- 6 Flexibility...

Application Specifications

Transfer possibilities National / International / Global
Application send till DD/MM/YYYY

E-Mail / Contact ...@....com

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Grading Specifications

Qualifications & Functional Knowledge

High School Diploma or Equivalent. 2 years of supervisory experience or completion of Lead Tech program. Intermediate skill levels in Microsoft Office and Windows Operating Applications. Formal specialized training to the Associate Degree level in Electrical, Electronics, Facilities, Track and Vehicles maintenance or minimum of 5 years' experience in these trades.

Required Knowledge of the Business

- Qualified in all Operations Center work procedures.
- Certified in all Operations Center certification requirements.
- Qualified in all Safe Work Procedures and Company Safety Standards.
- Failure Management Strategies, Emergency Procedures, Power Distribution and all other Operations Center functions.
- Ability to detect and respond to employee and safety issues.
- Ability to execute work activities according to availability and reliability metrics.
- Ability to plan work and work schedules, activate and de-activate occupancy and work permits and clearances.
- Create and implement service schedules, develop and implement contingency plans for emergencies and other events that affect revenue service.
- Record and track work in Company systems, i.e. MAXIMO.
- Adhere to organization's targets, budget, overtime, penalities, etc.
- Ensure work schedules are balanced and penalities are minimized or avoided.
- Adhere to all policies, protocols and procedures to report employee and system related events.

Leadership - Management or Technical

Lead a shift of employees, define and communicate work activities, performance standards, monitor and measure employees' performance against standards, safety rules, work standards and operation metrics. Create effective relationships with managers, peers, subordinates and clients by displaying conduct that is professional, respectful and inspires trust, and reflects a shared purpose to achieve organization's goals. Follows up and follows through to meet commitments, resolve issues and communications are complete and fulfilled.

Problem Solving

Competent in solving problems and executing logical and effective corrective measures as they pertain to work tasks and employees. Can determine appropriate measures to take to prevent or minimize reoccurrence of work related and employee problems and issues. Can collaborate across departments to effectively manage system operating plans, emergencies and events that affect revenue service. Accepts ownership of departmental issues and situations and follows-up and through on commitments, addresses issues and concerns timely and honestly and follows Company policies and established procedures. ...

Area & Nature of Impact

Availability, Reliability, Employee Engagement, Customer Relations, Employee & Labor Relations. ...

Interpersonal & Communication Skills

Exhibits respect for individuals, have the ability to express ideas orally and in writing in accordance with accepted rules of grammar, can provide clear directions and goals. Dress, job knowledge and communications project a desirable and capable image. ...

Additional information and elements to consider

Will require flexibility and willingness to work in a 24/7 shift environment, safety sensitive position that is subject to random alcohol and drug tests, valid driver license in accordance with NY State DMV laws. Homeland Security background security check SIDA. Work area audio and video recorded.

	Data Manageme	nt Specifications			
Generic / Reference role	Generic / Reference job code Sub family (if available)		Global Grade		
***			***	•	
Job family			Cost Center		
***	***				
	Аррі	rovals			
Job profile compiled by	Job profile approved by Business (hiring manager)	Job profile approved by Human Resources	y	Giobal Grade approved by Compensation	
Name, date	Name, date	Name, date		Name, date	

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Business title Supervisor - Plant		Reporting Line (title of position) Facilities Manager		
Division / Group Function Systems	Business Unit/Department	Work location JFK	Country USA	
Career path General Management	Job family Facilities	Effective date	Global Grade 	

Job Content Specifications

Purpose of the job

Plant Supervisor is responsible to oversee and supervise the work of Plant Trades personnel, vendors and subcontractors. Will supervise preventive and corrective maintenance and repair of fixed facilities, i.e., stations, substations and OMSF. Trades work includes plumbing, heating, escalators, elevators, locks, HVAC and all other systems related to fixed facilities. The supervisor is responsible to evaluate, coach and develop employees to ensure they are competent and maintain required skills to effectively perform their job task efficiently and safely. Responsible to enforce Company policies and levy discipline when they have determined an employee has engaged in unacceptable behavior.

...10 %

...30 %

...30 %

Key responsibilities and challenges

- Administrative Required to ensure all revenue generating documentation is accurate and complete and signed off. Audit employees' work activities and verify work has been completed according to work procedures that includes safety, quantity and quality standards as stated in Company documents that control and govern standards. Responsible to record accurate and complete information in Company systems, books and records and ensure records comply with all legal reporting requirements. Enforce Company policy as it pertains to accurate and complete records. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Operations Review proposals from vendors for various maintenance tasks. Create NPRs for chosen vendors. Inspect completed vendor work. Approve vendor's invoices for payment within established procedures. Collaborate across departmental lines to develop and implement strategies to maintain service levels during normal and emergency service. Will supervise employees' and subcontractor work activities to minimize events that cause service disruptions, safety infractions, and ensure that work is executed in accordance with rules and procedures and meets commercial agreements. Effectively use resources to support revenue service, maintenance assignments and special events. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service.
- Maintenance Required to conduct shift briefings to assign work tasks to employees and contractors, coordinate work activities across department lines so that service commitments and service quality factors are met, ensure employees are qualified/certified to perform assigned job tasks. Audit job tasks to evaluate and improve employees' technical and safety proficiencies, to increase efficiencies and to ensure work is in compliance with standards, procedures and regulations. Develop and implement contingency plans for changes or events that affect planned work schedules. Required to open and close out work orders in MAXIMO in accordance with established standards. Oversees maintenance work of employees and subcontractors and will include the completion of paperwork and input into MAXIMO. Reports fully and completely to management about all facility maintenance activities that affect safety and revenue service.

Training & Development — Required to train, qualify and certify employees to perform job tasks proficiently, efficiently and safely. Evaluate employees' performance and provide them with feedback to improve their skill levels. Conduct on-the-job training, re-training, re-certifications and examinations as established by the Company to qualify employees to perform work tasks. Ensure employees are trained and qualified to perform work activities. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Safety – Responsible to communicate to and train employees and subcontractors on safety standards and procedures. To protect your own safety as well as the safety of co-workers, passengers, subcontractors and subordinates. Conduct safety audits, risk assessments and perform other safety related measures to reduce and eliminate safety hazards. Enforce the Company's safety policies and standards, correct unacceptable behavior and levy discipline when an employee actions compromises safety. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Organizational Specifications

Number of hierarchical levels between this position and the Group President (don't count President)

5...

Number of hierarchical levels and total number of direct reports reporting to this position

1/ Min 3 & Max 15 ...

Bombardier Competency Specifications

- 1 Holding People Accountable...
- 4 Communication

2 Team Leadership...

- 5 Developing Others...
- 3 Listening, Understanding & Responding...
- 6 Flexibility...

Application Specifications

Transfer possibilities National / International / Global Application send till DD/MM/YYYY

E-Mail / Contact ...@....com

%

...20 %

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Grading Specifications

Qualifications & Functional Knowledge

High School Diploma or Equivalent and specialized training from a recognized technical trade school and 3 years of experience in fixed facilities maintenance and repair. Intermediate skill levels in Microsoft Office and Windows Operating Applications.

Knowledge of the Business

- Qualified in all facility department work procedures.
- Certified in all facility department Certification requirements.
- Qualified in all Safe Work Procedures and Company Safety Standards.
- Ability to use MAXIMO and have oversight of MAXIMO use by direct reports and subcontractors.
- Ability to create NPRs and track steps from proposal to invoice.
- Ability to detect and respond to employee's and subcontractor's issues and safety concerns.
- Ability to execute work activities according to availability and reliability metrics.
- Ability to plan work and work schedules, activate and de-activate work permits.
- Develop and implement contingency plans for emergencies and other events that affect revenue
- Record and track work in Company systems, i.e. MAXIMO.
- Supervise and evaluate subcontractors' work.
- Adhere to organization's targets, budget, overtime, penalities, etc.
- Ensure work schedules are balanced and penalities are minimized or avoided.
- Adhere to all policies, protocols and procedures to report employee and system related events.

Leadership – Management or Technical

Lead a shift of employees, define and communicate work activities, performance standards, monitor and measure employees' performance against standards, safety rules, work standards and operation metrics. Create effective relationships with managers, peers, subordinates and clients by displaying conduct that is professional, respectful and inspires trust, and reflects a shared purpose to achieve organization's goals. Follows up and follows through to meet commitments, resolve issues and communications are complete and fulfilled.

Problem Solving

Competent in solving problems and executing logical and effective corrective measures as they pertain to work tasks and employees. Can determine appropriate measures to take to prevent or minimize reoccurrence of work related and employee problems and issues. Can collaborate across departments to effectively manage system operating plans, emergencies and events that affect revenue service. Accepts ownership of departmental issues and situations and follows-up and through on commitments, addresses issues and concerns timely and honestly and follows Company policies and established procedures. ...

Area & Nature of Impact

Availability, Reliability, Service Quality Factors (SQF) Employee Engagement, Customer Relations, Employee & Labor Relations. ...

Interpersonal & Communication Skills

Exhibits respect for individuals, have the ability to express ideas orally and in writing in accordance with accepted rules of grammar, can provide clear directions and goals. Dress, job knowledge and communications project a desirable and capable image. ...

Additional information and elements to consider

Will require flexibility and willingness to work in a 24/7 shift environment, safety sensitive position that is subject to random alcohol and drug tests, valid driver license in accordance with NY State DMV laws. Required to pass a Homeland Security background security check for SIDA badge. Must have physical

	Data Manageme	nt Specifications		
Generic / Reference role	Generic / Refe	erence job code	Glob	al Grade
***	•••		•••	
Job family	Sub family (if	available)	Cost	Center
	317		•••	
	Appr	ovals		
Job profile compiled by	Job profile approved by Business (hiring manager)	Job profile approved Human Resources	d by	Global Grade approved by Compensation
Name, date	Name, date	Name, date		Name, date

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Business title Supervisor - Track Division / Group Function Systems Business Unit/Department		Reporting Line (title of position) Wayside Manager		
		Work location JFK	Country USA	
Career path Maintenance Manager	Job family Wayside Maintenance	Effective date	Global Grade	

Job Content Specifications

Purpose of the job

The Track Supervisor oversees and supervises the work of Track Technicians that maintain and report mainline tracks, special track work, switch machines, tunnels, structures, power rails, reaction rails, drainage and walkways and responsible for overseeing the maintenance and repair of heavy rail vehicles that have diesel and hydraculic components. Will oversee the work of subcontractors. The supervisor is responsible to evaluate, coach and develop employees to ensure they are competent and maintain required skills to effectively perform their job task efficiently and safely. Responsible for Track Access maintenance plans and their implementation. Responsible to enforce Company policies and levy discipline.

Key responsibilities and challenges

- Administrative Required to ensure all revenue generating documentation is accurate and complete and signed off. Audit employees' work activities and verify work has been completed according to work procedures that includes safety, quantity and quality standards as stated in Company documents that control and govern standards. Responsible to record accurate and complete information in Company systems, books and records and ensure records comply with all legal reporting requirements. Enforce Company policy as it pertains to accurate and complete records. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Operations Review proposals from vendors for various track maintenance. Create NPRs for chosen vendors. Inspect completed vendor work. Approve vendor's invoices for payment within established procedures. Collaborate across departmental lines to develop and implement strategies to maintain service levels during normal and emergency service. Will supervise employees' and subcontractor work activities to minimize events that cause service disruptions, safety infractions, and ensure that work is executed in accordance with rules and procedures and meets commercial agreements. Effectively use resources to support revenue service, maintenance assignments and special events. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service.
- Maintenance Required to conduct shift briefings to assign work tasks to employees and contractors, coordinate work activities across department lines so that service commitments and service quality factors are met, ensure employees are qualified/certified to perform assigned job tasks. Audit job tasks to evaluate and improve employees' technical and safety proficiencies, to increase efficiencies and to ensure work is in compliance with standards, procedures and regulations. Develop and implement contingency plans for changes or events that affect planned work schedules. Required to open and close out work orders in MAXIMO in accordance with established standards. Oversees maintenance work of employees and subcontractors and will include the completion of paperwork and input into MAXIMO. Reports fully and completely to management about all facility maintenance activities that affect safety and revenue service.

...30 %

...10 %

...30 %

- Training & Development Required to train, qualify and certify employees to perform job tasks proficiently, efficiently and safely. Evaluate employees' performance and provide them with feedback to improve their skill levels. Conduct on-the-job training, re-training, re-certifications and examinations as established by the Company to qualify employees to perform work tasks. Ensure employees are trained and qualified to perform work activities. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Safety Responsible to communicate to and train employees and subcontractors on safety standards and procedures. To protect your own safety as well as the safety of co-workers, passengers, subcontractors and subordinates. Conduct safety audits, risk assessments and perform other safety related measures to reduce and eliminate safety hazards. Enforce the Company's safety policies and standards, correct unacceptable behavior and levy discipline when an employee actions compromises safety. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Organizational Specifications

Number of hierarchical levels between this position and the Group President (don't count President)

5...

%

...20 %

Number of hierarchical levels and total number of direct reports reporting to this position

1/ Min 3 & Max 15 ...

Bombardier Competency Specifications

- 1 Holding People Accountable...
- 4 Communication

2 Team Leadership...

- 5 Developing Others...
- Listening, Understanding & Responding...
- 6 Flexibility...

Application Specifications

Transfer possibilities National / International / Global Application send till DD/MM/YYYY

E-Mail / Contact ...@....com

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Grading Specifications

Qualifications & Functional Knowledge

High School Diploma or Equivalent and specialized training from a recognized technical trade school in mechanical or electrical and 3 years of experience in track maintenance and repair. Intermediate skill levels in Microsoft Office and Windows Operating Applications.

Required Knowledge of the Business includes but not limited to develop and implement maintenance plans according to track access plan and in accordance with work standards as defined in Company documents at defined intervals and life cycles of equipment and materials. Analyze and evaluate track performance levels and make recommendations for hardware/software changes and prepare documentation for such changes. Conduct tests and review work to ensure installations and maintenance meet quality and regulatory standards as it applies to track maintenance. Prepare reports and participate in meets with senior management and clients and co-workers.

- Qualified in all Track Maintenance work procedures.
- Certified in all Track Department Certification requirements.
- Qualified in all Safe Work Procedures and Company Safety Standards.
- Ability to use MAXIMO and have oversight of MAXIMO use by direct reports and subcontractors.
- Ability to create NPRs and track steps from proposal to invoice.
- Ability collaborate across department lines about track access maintenance plan to maximize work opportunities.
- Ability to detect and respond to employee's and subcontractor's issues and safety concerns.
- Ability to execute work activities according to availability and reliability metrics.
- Ability to plan work and work schedules, activate and de-activate work permits.
- Develop and implement contingency plans for emergencies and other events that affect revenue service.
- Record and track work in Company systems, i.e. MAXIMO.
- Supervise and evaluate subcontractors' work.
- Adhere to organization's targets, budget, overtime, penalities, etc.
- Ensure work schedules are balanced and penalities are minimized or avoided.
- Adhere to all policies, protocols and procedures to report employee and system related events.
- Adhere to all communication protocols to report status of system to management, client and emergency responders. ...

Leadership – Management or Technical

Lead employees and subcontractors, define and communicate work activities, performance standards, monitor and measure employees' performance against standards, safety rules, work standards and operation metrics. Create effective relationships with managers, peers, subordinates and clients by displaying conduct that is professional, respectful and inspires trust, and reflects a shared purpose to achieve organization's goals. Follows up and follows through to meet commitments, resolve issues and communications are complete and fulfilled.

Problem Solving

Competent in solving problems and executing logical and effective corrective measures as they pertain to work tasks and employees. Can determine appropriate measures to take to prevent or minimize reoccurrence of work related and employee problems and issues. Can collaborate across departments to effectively manage system operating plans, emergencies and events that affect revenue service. Accepts ownership of departmental issues and situations and follows-up and through on commitments, addresses issues and concerns timely and honestly and follows Company policies and established procedures. ...

Area & Nature of Impact

Availability, Reliability, Service Quality Factors (SQF) Employee Engagement, Customer Relations, Employee & Labor Relations. ...

Interpersonal & Communication Skills

Exhibits respect for individuals, have the ability to express ideas orally and in writing in accordance with accepted rules of grammar, can provide clear directions and goals. Dress, job knowledge and communications project a desirable and capable image. ...

Additional information and elements to consider

Will require flexibility and willingness to work in a 24/7 shift environment, safety sensitive position that is subject to random alcohol and drug tests, valid driver license in accordance with NY State DMV laws. Required to pass a Homeland Security background security check for SIDA badge. Must have physical capability to lift and carry fifty (50) pounds four (4) feet. ...

	Data Manageme	nt Specifications		
Generic / Reference role	Generic / Refe	erence job code	Glob	al Grade
***	•••		•••	
Job family	Sub family (if	available)	Cost	Center
	±**			
	Аррг	ovals		
Job profile compiled by	Job profile approved by Business (hiring manager)	Job profile approved b Human Resources	у	Global Grade approved by Compensation
Name, date	Name, date	Name, date		Name, date

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Business title Supervisor - Vehicles		Reporting Line (title of position) Vehicles Manager		
Division / Group Function Systems	Business Unit/Department	Work location JFK	Country USA	
Career path Maintenance Manager	Job family Maintenance	Effective date	Global Grade 	

Job Content Specifications

Purpose of the job

Vehicles Supervisor is responsible to oversee and supervise work activities of Vehicle Technicians personnel in carrying out vehicle preventive and correct maintenance and repair to the vehicles electrical, electronic and mechanical systems, vehicle cleaning and maintenance of shop and support equipment. Responsible to develop and implement techniques to ensure maintenance is conducted safely, reliably, efficiently and in conformance with existing rules and procedures as outlined in vehicle maintenance procedures. The supervisor is responsible to evaluate, coach and develop employees to ensure they are competent and maintain required skills to effectively perform their job task efficiently and safely. Responsible to enforce Company policies and levy discipline.

...10 %

...30

...30 %

Key responsibilities and challenges

- Administrative Required to ensure all revenue generating documentation is accurate and complete and signed off. Audit employees' work activities and verify work has been completed according to work procedures that includes safety, quantity and quality standards as stated in Company documents that control and govern vehicles maintenance standards. Responsible to record accurate and complete information in Company systems, books and records and ensure records comply with all legal reporting requirements. Enforce Company policy as it pertains to accurate and complete records. Document, track and evaluate employee performance and attendance. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...
- Operations Develop and implement shift work schedules to support vehicles maintenance plans that reflect effective and efficient use of resources. Work plans and schedules to support corrective maintenance and repairs. Verifies completed work meets acceptable quality control standards. Reviews preventive and corrective maintenance procedures and presents recommendations to improve, safety and work performance. Will supervise employees work activities to minimize events that cause service disruptions, safety infractions, and ensure that work is executed in accordance with rules and procedures and meets commercial agreements. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service.
- Maintenance Required to conduct shift briefings to assign work tasks to employees and coordinate work activities so that service commitments and service quality factors are met, ensure employees are qualified/certified to perform assigned job tasks. Audit job tasks to evaluate and improve employees' technical and safety proficiencies, to increase efficiencies and to ensure work is in compliance with standards, procedures and regulations. Develop and implement contingency plans for changes or events that affect planned work schedules. Required to open and close out work orders in MAXIMO in accordance with established standards. Oversees maintenance work of employees including the completion of paperwork and input into MAXIMO. Reports fully and completely to management about all facility maintenance activities that affect safety and revenue service.

...10

...20 %

Training & Development — Required to train, qualify and certify employees to perform job tasks proficiently, efficiently and safely. Evaluate employees' performance and provide them with feedback to improve their skill levels. Conduct on-the-job training, re-training, re-certifications and examinations as established by the Company to qualify employees to perform work tasks. Ensure employees are trained and qualified to perform work activities. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Safety – Responsible to communicate to and train employees and subcontractors on safety standards and procedures. To protect your own safety as well as the safety of co-workers, passengers, subcontractors and subordinates. Conduct safety audits, risk assessments and perform other safety related measures to reduce and eliminate safety hazards. Enforce the Company's safety policies and standards, correct unacceptable behavior and levy discipline when an employee actions compromises safety. Reports fully and completely to management about all activities that affect safety and revenue service. ...

Organizational Specifications

Number of hierarchical levels between this position and the Group President (don't count President)

5...

Number of hierarchical levels and total number of direct reports reporting to this position

1/ Min 3 & Max 15 ...

Bombardier Competency Specifications

- 1 Holding People Accountable...
- 4 Communication

2 Team Leadership...

- 5 Developing Others...
- Listening, Understanding & Responding...
- 6 Flexibility...

Application Specifications

Transfer possibilities National / International / Global Application send till DD/MM/YYYY

E-Mail / Contact ...@....com

Bombardier Transportation Job Profile

Grading Specifications

Qualifications & Functional Knowledge

High School Diploma or Equivalent and specialized training from a recognized technical trade school in mechanical, electrical or electronics. 5 years of experience in maintenance in transportation industry preferred. Intermediate skill levels in Microsoft Office and Windows Operating Applications.

Required Knowledge of the Business includes but not limited to:

- Qualified in all vehicles maintenance work procedures.
- Certified in all vehicles department Certification requirements.
- Qualified in all Safe Work Procedures and Company Safety Standards.
- Ability to use MAXIMO and have oversight of MAXIMO use by direct reports and subcontractors.
- Ability to create NPRs and track steps from proposal to invoice.
- Ability to detect and respond to employee's and subcontractor's issues and safety concerns.
- Ability to execute work activities according to availability and reliability metrics.
- Ability to plan work and work schedules, activate and de-activate work permits.
- Develop and implement contingency plans for emergencies and other events that affect revenue service.
- Record and track work in Company systems, i.e. MAXIMO.
- Supervise and evaluate subcontractors' work.
- Adhere to organization's targets, budget, overtime, penalities, etc.
- Ensure work schedules are balanced and penalities are minimized or avoided.
- Adhere to all policies, protocols and procedures to report employee and system related events.
- Adhere to all communication protocols to report status of system to management, client and emergency responders. ...

Leadership – Management or Technical

Lead a shift of employees, define and communicate work activities, performance standards, monitor and measure employees' performance against standards, safety rules, work standards and operation metrics. Create effective relationships with managers, peers, subordinates and clients by displaying conduct that is professional, respectful and inspires trust, and reflects a shared purpose to achieve organization's goals. Follows up and follows through to meet commitments, resolve issues and communications are complete and fulfilled.

Problem Solving

Competent in solving problems and executing logical and effective corrective measures as they pertain to work tasks and employees. Can determine appropriate measures to take to prevent or minimize reoccurrence of work related and employee problems and issues. Can collaborate across departments to effectively manage system operating plans, emergencies and events that affect revenue service. Accepts ownership of departmental issues and situations and follows-up and through on commitments, addresses issues and concerns timely and honestly and follows Company policies and established procedures. ...

Area & Nature of Impact

Availability, Reliability, Service Quality Factors (SQF) Employee Engagement, Customer Relations, Employee & Labor Relations. ...

Interpersonal & Communication Skills

Exhibits respect for individuals, have the ability to express ideas orally and in writing in accordance with accepted rules of grammar, can provide clear directions and goals. Dress, job knowledge and communications project a desirable and capable image. ...

Additional information and elements to consider

Will require flexibility and willingness to work in a 24/7 shift environment, safety sensitive position that is subject to random alcohol and drug tests, valid driver license in accordance with NY State DMV laws. Required to pass a Homeland Security background security check for SIDA badge. Must have physical capability to lift and carry fifty (50) pounds four (4) feet. ...

	Data Manageme	nt Specifications		-
Generic / Reference role	Generic / Refe	erence job code	Globa	al Grade
***	***		,	
Job family	Sub family (if	available)	Cost	Center

	Аррі	ovals		
Job profile compiled by	Job profile approved by Business (hiring manager)	Job profile approved by Human Resources	,	Global Grade approved by Compensation
Name, date	Name, date	Name, date		Name, date